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64B8-44.001 Nutrition Assessment.

A nutrition assessment is the evaluation of the nutritional needs of individuals or groups using data to determine nutrient needs or status and to make appropriate nutrition recommendations. Objective and subjective information may be gathered from observations, interviews, and written records. Appropriate data shall include some or all of the following:

(1) Dietary history and current dietary intake including types and quantities of nutrients consumed;

(2) Anthropometric measures such as height, weight, and measurements of body fat and muscle;

(3) Information from health care providers including previous medical charting data and laboratory results of biochemical tests ordered by the client’s physician;

(4) Individual and family health history and status;

(5) Demographic factors such as cultural, religious, occupational, educational, residential, environmental, and socio-economic background;

(6) Recreation and exercise patterns;

(7) Client knowledge and perception about individual and family nutritional status and nutritional goals.

Rulemaking Authority 468.507 FS. Law Implemented 468.503(9) FS. History–New 12-4-90, Formerly 21M-50.001, 61F6-50.001, 59R-44.001.

64B8-44.002 Fraudulent, False, Deceptive, or Misleading Advertising.
(1) “Advertisement” or “advertising” shall mean any written or oral statements to or before the public with the intent of furthering the purpose, either directly or indirectly, of selling professional services, or offering to perform professional services, or inducing members of the public to enter into any obligation relating to such professional services.

(2) Any advertisement or advertising shall be deemed by the Board to be fraudulent, false, deceptive, or misleading if it:

(a) Contains a misrepresentation of facts, or

(b) Makes only a partial disclosure of relevant facts, or

(c) Creates false or unjustified expectations of beneficial assistance, or

(d) Represents that professional services can or will be completely performed for a stated fee when this is not the case, or makes representations with respect to fees for professional services that do not disclose all variables affecting the fees that will in fact be charged, or

(e) Appears in any classified directory, listing, or compendium under a heading, which when considered together with the advertisement, has the capacity or tendency to be deceptive or misleading with respect to the profession or professional status of the licensee, or

(f) Contains any representation of a special area of practice by the licensee which implies that the licensee requires a superior license or formal recognition by the Board to that granted other dietitian/nutritionists or nutrition counselors who meet the licensing requirements of the Dietetics and Nutrition Practice Act, or

(g) States or implies the licensee is a specialist in any aspect of dietetics/nutrition practice or nutrition counseling unless the person has completed post-baccalaureate training in the recognized speciality field including internship, fellowship or alternative training requirements. The licensee may indicate the services offered and may state that the practice is limited to one or more types of services when this is the case, or

(h) States or implies that the licensee has been certified as a specialist in any aspect of the practice of nutrition unless he or she has received such certification, meets the training requirements, includes the name of the certifying agency in any statement or advertisement claiming certification, and the certifying agency meets the following criteria:

1. The organization has been granted Section 501(c) status under the Internal Revenue Code.

2. The organization shall have full time administrative staff, housed in dedicated office space which is appropriate for the organization’s program.

3. The organization shall have bylaws, a code of ethics to guide the practice to its members, an internal review and control process, including budgetary practices and quality assurance management to ensure effective education, training or testing standards.

4. The organization shall be national in scope with a central purpose being protecting the health and safety of the public.

5. The certifying organization shall be able to demonstrate adequate procedures to ensure that its examination is of sufficient breadth and scope to cover the speciality field; that the exams and answers are adequately secured; that prior to testing it established a standard grading system with pass/fail standards of acceptable psychometric validity and reliability; that exam proctoring shall be done by independent proctors, at a minimum, members of the certification board not related to, in practice or association with, or having a financial interest in the applicant being tested; and that the grant or denial of certification is based on objective performance, skill, knowledge and merit of the candidate.

6. The organization has an interest in the continuing proficiency of its members by requiring periodic recertification and documentation of continuing professional education hours as well as continued practice in the field of certification. These speciality fields include the American Diabetic Association Certified Diabetic Educators, persons certified by the American Society of Parenteral and Enteral Nutrition; and a fellow of the American Society of Clinical Nutrition.

(i) Makes false, unproven, or misleading claims about the validity, safety, or effectiveness of any dietetic or nutrition related service, product or test, or

(j) Fails to conspicuously identify the licensee by name in the advertisement, or

(k) Contains any other representation, statement, or claim which misleads or deceives.

(3) Any licensee who advertises in the electronic media must insure that an exact copy of the audio tape or video tape, as applicable, is maintained and preserved for at least 90 days from the date the actual advertisement is aired on or shown through the electronic media.
Rulemaking Authority 468.507 FS. Law Implemented 468.518(1)(g), (h) FS. History–New 12-4-90, Formerly 21M-50.002, Amended 6-22-94, Formerly 61F6-50.002, Amended 2-20-96, Formerly 59R-44.002, Amended 7-13-16.

64B8-44.003 Disciplinary Guidelines.

(1) When the Board finds any person has committed any of the acts set forth in Section 456.072(1) or Chapter 468, Part X, F.S., it shall issue a final order imposing appropriate penalties as recommended in the following disciplinary guidelines. The language identifying offenses below is descriptive only. The full language of each statutory provision cited must be consulted to determine the conduct included.
	RECOMMENDED RANGE OF PENALTY

	VIOLATION
	FLORIDA LICENSES
	TELEHEALTH REGISTRANTS

	
	FIRST OFFENSE
	ADDITIONAL OFFENSE
	FIRST OFFENSE
	ADDITIONAL OFFENSE

	(a) Violating any provision of Chapter 468, Part X, F.S., any board or department rule adopted pursuant thereto, or any lawful order of the board or department previously entered in a disciplinary hearing held pursuant to Chapter 468, Part X, F.S., or failing to comply with a lawfully issued subpoena of the department.
(Sections 468.518(1)(a), (n), 456.072(1)(b), (dd), (k), (q), F.S.)
	$150 fine and /or continuing education to probation and /or $1,000 fine.

	Probation and /or $200 fine to Revocation and $1,000 fine.

	Suspension

and corrective action plan to Revocation.

	Revocation.


	(b) Being unable to engage in dietetics and nutrition practice or nutrition counseling with reasonable skill and safety to patients by reason of illness or use of alcohol, drugs, narcotics, chemicals, or any other type of material or as a result of any mental or physical condition. (Sections 468.518(1)(b), 456.072(1)(z), F.S.)
	Suspension until such time as the licensee can provide proof of reasonable skill and safety.

	Suspension until such time as the licensee can provide proof of reasonable skill and safety.

	Suspension and corrective action plan to revocation.

	Revocation.


	(c) Attempting to procure or procuring a license to practice dietetics and nutrition or nutrition counseling by fraud, material misrepresentation of material fact, or by error of the department or the board.

(Sections 468.518(1)(c), 456.072(1)(h), F.S.)
	
	
	
	

	1. By error to the department or the board.
	Revocation.
	Revocation.
	Revocation.
	Revocation.

	2. By fraud, or material misrepresentation of material fact.
	$10,000 fine, and revocation. 
	$10,000 fine, and revocation.
	Revocation.

	Revocation.


	(d) Having a license to practice dietetics and nutrition or nutrition counseling revoked, suspended, or otherwise acted against, including the denial of licensure by the licensing authority of another state, district, territory, or country. (Sections 468.518(1)(d), 456.072(1)(f), F.S.)


	Reprimand, laws and rules continuing education to $1,000 fine, and suspension of license until unencumbered in other jurisdiction, laws and rules continuing education.
	$1,000 fine, suspension and/or probation to revocation.

	Reprimand to suspension and corrective action plan.

	Suspension and corrective action plan to revocation.


	(e) Being convicted or found guilty of, or entering a plea of nolo contendere to, regardless of adjudication, a crime in any jurisdiction which directly relates to the practice of dietetics and nutrition or nutrition counseling or the ability to practice dietetics and nutrition or nutrition counseling.
(Sections 468.518(1)(e), 456.072(1)(c), F.S.)
	$1,000 fine and probation to revocation and $1,000 fine.

	$1,000 fine, and probation to revocation and $1,000 fine.

	Suspension and corrective action plan to revocation.

	Suspension and corrective action plan to revocation.


	(f) Making or filing a report or record that the licensee knows to be false, willfully failing to file a report or record required by state or federal law, willfully impeding or obstructing such filing, or inducing another person to impede or obstruct such filing.
(Sections 468.518(1)(f), 456.072(1)(g), F.S.)
	Letter of concern and/or $300 fine to probation and $1,500 fine.

	One year probation and/or $1,500 fine to revocation and $10,000 fine.

	Letter of concern to suspension and corrective action plan.

	Suspension and corrective action plan to revocation.


	(g) Advertising goods or services in a manner that is fraudulent, false, deceptive, or misleading in form or content, or employing a trick of scheme related to the profession.
(Sections 468.518(1)(g), 456.072(1)(a),(m), F.S.)
	
	
	
	

	1. If misleading or deceptive.

	Letter of concern and $300 fine to suspension and $1,500 fine.
	Suspension and $2,500 fine to revocation.
	Reprimand to suspension and corrective action plan.
	Suspension and corrective action plan to revocation.

	2. If fraudulent representation found.

	$10,000 fine to $10,000 fine and revocation.

	$10,000 fine and probation to $10,000 fine and revocation.
	Suspension and corrective action plan to revocation.
	Revocation.


	(h) Committing an act of fraud or deceit, or of negligence, incompetency, or misconduct in the practice of dietetics and nutrition or nutrition counseling.
(Section 468.518(1)(h), F.S.) 
	
	
	
	

	1. If negligence, incompetency or misconduct.

	Letter of concern and $300 fine to suspension and $1,500 fine.
	Suspension and $2,500 fine to revocation.


	Reprimand to suspension and corrective action plan.
	Suspension and corrective action plan to revocation.

	2. If by fraud or deceit.

	$10,000 fine to $10,000 fine and revocation.

	$10,000 fine and probation to $10,000 fine and revocation.
	Suspension and corrective action plan to revocation 
	Revocation.


	(i) Practicing with a revoked, suspended, inactive, or delinquent license.
(Section 468.518(1)(i), F.S.)

	$250 fine and continuing education to $1,000 fine and continuing education. 
	Probation, $2,500 fine to revocation.

	Reprimand to suspension and corrective action plan.

	Suspension and corrective action plan to revocation.


	(j) Treating or undertaking to treat human ailments by means other than by dietetics and nutrition practice or nutrition counseling.
(Section 468.518(1)(j), 456.072(1)(o), F.S.)

	$250 fine and probation to $1,000 fine and probation and/or suspension.
	$400 fine and probation to $2,500 fine and probation and/or suspension.
	Reprimand to suspension and corrective action plan.

	Suspension and corrective action plan to revocation.


	(k) Failing to maintain acceptable standards of practice as set forth by the board and the council in rules adopted pursuant to this part.
(Section 486.518(1)(k), F.S.)
	$100 fine and probation to $1,000 fine and probation.
	$350 fine and suspension to revocation. 

	Reprimand to suspension and corrective action plan.
	Suspension and corrective action plan to revocation.

	(l) Engaging directly or indirectly in the dividing, transferring, assigning, rebating, or refunding of fees received for professional services, or profiting by means of a credit or other valuable consideration, such as an unearned commission, discount, or gratuity, with any person referring a patient or with any relative or business associate of the referring person.
(Section 468.518(1)(l), F.S.)
	$1,000 fine and probation to $2,500 fine and suspension. 

	$3,500 fine and suspension to revocation.

	Suspension and corrective action plan.

	Suspension and corrective action plan to revocation.


	(m) Advertising, by or on behalf of a licensee under this part, any method of assessment or treatment which is experimental or without generally accepted scientific validation.
(Section 468.518(1)(m), F.S.)
	$500 fine and/or suspension to $1,000 fine and revocation.

	$2,000 fine and suspension to $2,500 fine and revocation.

	Reprimand to suspension and corrective action plan.

	Suspension and corrective action plan to revocation.


	(n) Failing to comply with the educational course requirements for human immunodeficiency virus and acquired immune deficiency syndrome, required by Section 456.003, F.S. or failing to comply with the educational course requirements for human trafficking as required by Section 456.0341, F.S.
(Section 456.072(1)(e), F.S.)
	Reprimand, $100 fine and proof of completion of CE to $500 fine and probation.

	$1,000 fine and probation to $2,000 fine and probation.

	Reprimand to suspension and corrective action plan.

	Suspension and corrective action plan.


	(o) Failure to keep written medical records.

(Rule 64B8-44.004, F.A.C.)

	Reprimand and $100 fine to $500 fine and probation.
	$500 fine and probation to $2,000 fine and suspension.
	Reprimand to suspension and corrective action plan.
	Suspension and corrective action plan.


	(p) Except as provided in Section 465.016, F.S., failing to report to the department any person who the licensee knows is in violation of Chapter 456, and Chapter 468, Part X, F.S., or the rules of the department or the board.
(Section 456.072(1)(i), F.S.)
	Letter of concern to $1,000 fine and reprimand.

	Reprimand, and $1,000 fine to $1,000 fine and suspension.

	Letter of concern to suspension and corrective action plan.

	Suspension and corrective action plan. 


	(q) Exercising influence on the patient or client for the purpose of financial gain of the licensee or a third party.
(Section 456.072(1)(n), F.S.)
	Probation and continuing education to revocation.
	Revocation.


	Suspension and corrective action plan.


	Revocation.



	(r) Delegating or contracting for the performance of professional responsibilities by a person when the licensee delegating or contracting for performance of the responsibilities knows, or has reason to know, the person is not qualified by training, experience, and authorization when required to perform them.
(Section 456.072(1)(p), F.S.)
	Letter of Concern to $500 fine, probation and continuing education.

	Suspension and $1,500 fine to revocation and $1,500 fine.

	Reprimand to suspension and corrective action plan. 

	Suspension and corrective action plan.


	(s) Improperly interfering with an investigation or inspection authorized by statute, or with any disciplinary proceeding.
(Section 456.072(1)(r), F.S.)

	Reprimand and $250 fine to $500 fine and continuing education.

	$500 fine, probation and continuing education to $2,000 fine and suspension.
	Letter of concern to suspension and corrective action plan.

	Suspension and corrective action plan.


	(t) Failing to identify through written notice, which may include the wearing of a name tag, or orally to a patient the type of license under which the practitioner is practicing. Any advertisement for health care services naming the practitioner must identify the type of license the practitioner holds.
(Section 456.072(1)(t), F.S.)
	Letter of Concern to $100 fine. 


	$100 fine to $500 fine.


	Letter of Concern to reprimand.


	Reprimand.



	(u) Failing to comply with the requirements of Sections 381.026 and 381.0261, F.S., to provide patients with information about their patient rights and how to file a patient complaint.
(Section 456.072(1)(u), F.S.)

	Reprimand to $500 fine and reprimand and continuing education.  

	$500 fine and reprimand and continuing education to $1,000 fine and probation. 
	Reprimand to suspension and corrective action plan.

	Suspension and corrective action plan.


	(v) Engaging or attempting to engage in sexual misconduct as defined and prohibited in Section 456.063, F.S. 

(Section 456.072(1)(v), F.S.)
	$500 fine and probation to revocation.

	Revocation.

	Suspension and corrective action plan to revocation.
	Revocation.


	(w) Failing to report to the board, or the department if there is no board, in writing within 30 days after the licensee has been convicted or found guilty of, or entered a plea of nolo contendere to, regardless of adjudication, a crime in any jurisdiction.
(Section 456.072(1)(x), F.S.)

	Reprimand and $100 fine and continuing education to reprimand to $500 fine and continuing education.
	Reprimand and $500 fine $1,000 fine and suspension.

	Reprimand top suspension and corrective action plan.

	Suspension and corrective action plan.


	(x) Using information about people involved in motor vehicle accidents which has been derived from accident reports made by law enforcement officers or persons involved in accidents under Section 316.066, F.S., or using information published in a newspaper or other news publication or through a radio or television broadcast that has used information gained from such reports, for the purposes of commercial or any other solicitation whatsoever of the people involved in the accidents.
(Section 456.072(1)(v), F.S.)
	Letter of Concern to $500 fine and reprimand. 

	$500 fine and reprimand to suspension. 

	Reprimand to suspension and corrective action plan.

	Suspension and corrective action plan.


	(y) Testing positive for any drug, as defined in Section 112.0455, F.S., on any confirmed preemployment or employer-ordered drug screening when the practitioner does not have a lawful prescription and legitimate medical reason for using the drug.
(Section 456.072(1)(aa), F.S.)

	Suspension until evaluation by a licensed health care practitioner qualified by skill and training to address respondent’s condition, compliance with all recommendation.

	Suspension until evaluation by a licensed health care practitioner qualified by skill and training to address respondent’s condition, compliance with all recommendations to revocation.
	Suspension and corrective action plan. 

	Suspension and corrective action plan to revocation.


	(z) With respect to making a personal injury protection claim as required by Section 627.736, F.S., intentionally submitting a claim, statement, or bill that has been “upcoded” as defined in Section 627.732, F.S.
(Section 456.072(1)(ee), F.S.)
	$1,000 fine and probation to $2,500 fine and probation. 

	$5,000 fine and probation to revocation.

	Suspension and corrective action plan.

	Suspension and corrective action plan revocation.


	(aa) With respect to making a personal injury protection claim as required by Section 627.736, F.S., intentionally submitting a claim, statement, or bill for payment of services that were not rendered.
(Section 456.072(1)(ff), F.S.)
	Reprimand and $1,000 fine to $2,500 fine and probation.

	$5,000 fine and suspension to revocation. 

	Suspension and corrective action plan.

	Suspension and corrective action plan to revocation.


	(bb) Being terminated from an impaired practitioner program that is overseen by a consultant as described in Section 456.076, F.S., for failure to comply, without good cause, with the terms of the monitoring or participant contract entered into by the licensee, or for not successfully completing any drug treatment or alcohol treatment program.
(Section 456.072(1)(hh), F.S.)
	Suspension until such time as licensee is
re-admitted into a treatment or monitoring program to revocation.

	Suspension until such time as licensee successfully completes a treatment or monitoring program to revocation.
	Revocation.

	N/A


	(cc) Being convicted of, or entering a plea of guilty or nolo contendere to, any misdemeanor or felony, regardless of adjudication, under 18 U.S.C. s. 669, ss. 285-287, s. 371, s. 1001, s. 1035, s. 1341, s. 1343, s. 1347, s. 1349, or s. 1518, or 42 U.S.C. ss. 1320a-7b, relating to the Medicaid program.
(Section 456.072(1)(ii), F.S.)
	Revocation and $10,000 fine.

	
	Revocation.

	Revocation.


	(dd) Failing to remit the sum owed to the state for an overpayment from the Medicaid program pursuant to a final order, judgment, or stipulation or settlement.
(Section 456.072(1)(jj), F.S.)
	$1,000 fine and probation to $2,500 fine and probation.

	$2,500 fine and probation to $5,000 fine and probation.

	Suspension and corrective action plan.

	Suspension and corrective action plan.


	(ee) Being terminated from the state Medicaid program pursuant to Section 409.913, F.S., any other state Medicaid program, or the federal Medicare program, unless eligibility to participate in the program from which the practitioner was terminated has been restored.
(Section 456.072(1)(kk), F.S.)
	$10,000 fine and revocation.

	
	Revocation.

	

	(ff) Being convicted of, or entering a plea of guilty or nolo contendere to, any misdemeanor or felony, regardless of adjudication, a crime in any jurisdiction which relates to health care fraud. (Section 456.072(1)(ll), F.S.)
	$10,000 fine and revocation.

	
	Revocation.

	

	(gg) Except as otherwise authorized, failure to comply with the parential consent requirements of Section 1014.06, F.S.
(Section 456.072(1)(rr), F.S.)


	Reprimand and $1,000 fine to one year probation and $5,000 fine.
	One year probation and a $5,000 fine to revocation.

	Suspension and corrective action plan.

	Suspension and corrective action plan to revocation.


	(hh) Being convicted or found guilty of, entering a plea of guilty or nolo contendere to, regardless of adjudication, or committing or attempting, soliciting, or conspiring to commit an act that would constitute a violation of any of the offenses listed in Section 456.074(5), F.S., or a similar offense in another jurisdiction.
	Revocation.

	N/A

	Revocation.

	N/A



(2) All guidelines allow for the imposition of continuing education without a finding of aggravating factor regardless of the penalty stated.
(3) Aggravating and Mitigating Circumstances. Based upon consideration of aggravating and mitigating factors present in an individual case, the Board may deviate from the penalties recommended below. The Board shall consider as aggravating or mitigating factors the following:

(a) Exposure of patients or public to injury or potential injury, physical or otherwise; none, slight, severe, or death,

(b) Legal status at the time of the offense; no restraints, or legal constraints,

(c) The number of counts or separate offenses established,

(d) The number of times the same offense or offenses have previously been committed by the licensee or applicant,

(e) The disciplinary history of the applicant or licensee in any jurisdiction and the length of practice,

(f) Pecuniary benefit or self-gain inuring to the applicant or licensee,

(g) Any efforts at rehabilitation, attempts by the licensee to correct or to stop violations, or refusal by the licensee to correct or to stop violations.

(4) Stipulations or Settlements. The provisions of this rule are not intended and shall not be construed to limit the ability of the Board to dispose informally of disciplinary actions by stipulation, agreed settlement, or consent order pursuant to Section 120.57(4), F.S.

Rulemaking Authority 456.072(1)(t), 456.079, 458.309, 468.507 FS. Law Implemented 456.072(1)(t), 456.079, 468.517, 468.518(2) FS. History–New 12-4-90, Formerly 21M-50.003, Amended 6-22-94, Formerly 61F6-50.003, 59R-44.003, Amended 3-16-98, 8-19-99, 9-28-00, 9-26-01, 2-13-03, 4-10-06, 1-8-07, 5-13-10, 7-13-16, 6-5-17, 8-16-21, 1-3-22.

64B8-44.0035 Payment of Fine.

All fines imposed by the Board shall be paid within thirty (30) days from the date of the final order entered by the Board unless the final order extends the deadline in any given case.

Rulemaking Authority 456.072(3), 468.507, 468.518(2)(c) FS. Law Implemented 456.072(3), 468.518(2)(c) FS. History–New 2-21-99.
64B8-44.004 Documentation.

(1) All licensees shall keep written patient records which shall include the nutrition assessment, the nutrition counseling plan, dietary orders, nutrition advice, patient progress notes, recommendations related to the patient’s health or the patient’s food or supplement intake, and any patient examination or test results.

(2) Prior to implementing a dietary or nutrition plan for a condition, the licensee must inquire whether the patient is under the active care of a licensed medical doctor, osteopathic physician, or chiropractic physician for that condition, and secure a written or oral dietary or nutrition order of the referring physician or the licensee must have been granted nutrition ordering privileges by the medical staff of a licensed care facility. If prior authorization is not practicable, the licensee may use professional discretion in providing nutrition services until authorization is obtained from the physician. The requirements of this subsection must be fully and completely documented in the patient’s record.

(3) Upon recognition that a patient who is not already under the care of a medical doctor, osteopathic physician, or chiropractic physician has a condition which is treatable within the scope of practice of any of these three health care providers, the licensee must refer the patient to one or more of these providers. The requirements of this subsection must be fully and completely documented in the patient’s record.

(4) The licensee shall sign and date all patient records.

(5) The licensee shall keep in confidence whatever he may learn about a patient in the discharge of professional duties and keep all patient records confidential. Information shall be divulged by the licensee when required by law, rule of the Board, or authorized by the patient.

(6) Inaccurate recording, falsifying or altering patient records including the nutrition assessment and documents required by this rule shall constitute a failure to maintain acceptable standards of practice.

Rulemaking Authority 468.507 FS. Law Implemented 468.516, 468.518(1)(f), (h), (k) FS. History–New 1-1-92, Formerly 21M-50.004, Amended 6-22-94, Formerly 61F6-50.004, 59R-44.004, Amended 8-15-16.
64B8-44.005 Citations.

(1) “Citation” means an instrument which meets the requirements set forth in Section 456.077, F.S., and which is served upon a licensee for the purpose of assessing a penalty in an amount established by this rule.

(2) In lieu of the disciplinary procedures contained in Section 456.073, F.S., the Department may issue a citation to the subject within six (6) months after the filing of the complaint which is the basis for the citation.

(3) The citation may be served upon the licensee by hand delivery or certified mail at the licensee’s last known home address. If service by certified mail fails because the licensee has relocated without leaving a forwarding address, then the Department shall endeavor to give the subject actual or constructive notice of the pending disciplinary action as permitted by law.

(4) The Board designates the following as citation violations:

(a) Failure to renew license during which time the person continues to practice up to sixty (60) days – a fine of $100.

(b) Tendering a dishonored check or electronic payment to the Department for payment of licensure or renewal – a fine of $100.

(c) Failure to notify the Department of a change of address within sixty (60) days – a fine of $100.

(d) Falsely certifying timely completion of required continuing education courses for renewal or initial licensure, if completed by the time the citation is to be issued – a fine of $100 per contact hour wrongfully claimed.
(e) Failure to comply with continuing education requirements:

1. Fines:

a. Failure to complete less than nine (9) hours, a fine of $300.

b. Failure to complete between nine (9) and sixteen (16) hours, a fine of $600.

c. Failure to complete between seventeen (17) and twenty-four (24) hours, a fine of $1,000.

2. Licensee must submit full payment of the fine and costs within ninety (90) days of the date the citation was issued.

3. Licensee must provide proof of completion of the deficient hours within ninety (90) days of the date the citation was issued.

(f) Failure to timely pay required fees and fines – a fine of $100.

(g) Failure to comply with advertising requirements – a fine of $100.

(h) Failure to display signs, licenses and permits – a fine of $100.

(4) In addition to the penalties established in this rule, the Department may recover the costs of investigation in accordance with its rules. When the Department intends to assess the costs of investigation, the penalty specified in the citation shall be the sum of the penalty established by this rule plus the Department’s cost of investigation.

(5) If the subject disputes any matter contained in the citation within thirty (30) days after service, the Department shall follow the procedure set forth in Section 456.073, F.S.; otherwise, the citation shall become a final order of the Board.

Rulemaking Authority 456.077, 468.507 FS. Law Implemented 456.077, 468.517, 468.518 FS. History–New 1-1-92, Formerly 21M-50.005, 61F6-50.005, 59R-44.005, Amended 9-26-01, 3-25-02, 7-17-05, 4-10-06, 7-8-09, 2-3-10, 8-20-14.
64B8-44.0055 Notice of Non-Compliance – Minor Violations.

(1) A Notice of noncompliance is a notification by the department issued to a licensee as a first response to a minor violation of Board rule. It is not accompanied by a fine or other disciplinary penalty.

(2) The Board designates the following as minor violations for which a notice of noncompliance may be issued for the first violation thereof:

(a) Failure to notify the Department of a change of address within 60 days, in violation of Rule 64B8-40.008, F.A.C.

(b) Failure to display license, in violation of Rule 64B8-44.002, F.A.C.

Rulemaking Authority 120.695, 456.073(3), 468.507 FS. Law Implemented 120.695, 456.073(3) FS. History–New 2-19-18.
64B8-44.006 HIV/AIDS: Knowledge of Antibody Status; Action to be Taken.

Rulemaking Authority 468.507, 456.032 FS. Law Implemented 456.032, 468.518(1)(b) FS. History–New 11-9-92, Formerly 21M-50.006, 61F6-50.006, 59R-44.006, Repealed 7-13-16.
64B8-44.007 Standards of Practice.

Licensees, under Chapter 468, Part X, F.S., shall comply with the following standards in their professional practice and conduct.

(1) The licensee shall maintain confidentiality of information.

(2) The licensee shall recognize and exercise professional judgement within the limits of the licensee’s qualifications and seek counsel or make referrals as appropriate.

(3) The licensee shall take reasonable action to inform a patient’s physician or encourage the patient to consult the physician where a patient’s nutritional status indicated a change in health status or new information about the health status has surfaced. This shall be documented in the patient’s record.

(4) The licensee shall accurately present professional qualifications and credentials. The licensee shall use “LD,” “LN,” “LNC,” “RD” or “Registered Dietition,” or “RDN” only when licensure is current and authorized by the Council, Board, and Department.
(5) The licensee shall permit use of that licensee’s name to certify that professional services have been rendered only if the licensee has provided or supervised those services.

(6) The licensee shall be responsible for all delegated acts performed by persons under either direct or indirect supervision. Supervision means the licensee oversees the activities of those persons and gives final approval to any procedures by non-licensed supportive personnel. Direct supervision means onsite supervision.

(7) Licensees may order analyses but may not directly collect human specimen samples.

(8) Any modality such as naturopathy or colonic irrigation shall be performed only if the individual is properly licensed by the Department. These practices are not within the scope of dietetics/nutrition practice.

(9) The licensee’s initial nutritional assessment of a patient must be done in a face-to-face setting, and may not be done by telephone, fax, or internet, except through use of a two point or multiple point video-conferencing system to provide each participant with a video camera, microphone and speakers which allow video and audio communication between all participants as if they were virtually seated in the same room. Communication between the patient and the licensee subsequent to the initial nutritional assessment may be accomplished either face-to-face or by other means, in the reasonable clinical judgment of the licensee. Federal programs that are federally funded are exempt from this subsection, so long as the administration of the program follows the dictates of the federal statutes and rules applicable to the program.

Rulemaking Authority 468.507, 468.518(1)(k) FS. Law Implemented 468.503(4), 468.518 FS. History–New 6-22-94, Formerly 61F6-50.007, Amended 2-20-96, Formerly 59R-44.007, Amended 7-14-03, 4-26-04, 1-8-07, Amended 7-6-10, 7-13-16, 4-26-21.
64B8-44.008 Performance of Delegated Tasks by Non-Licensed Personnel.

Rulemaking Authority 468.507 FS. Law Implemented 468.503(5), 468.511, 468.517, 468.518(1)(k) FS. History–New 2-28-93, Formerly 21M-50.008, 61F6-50.008, 59R-44.008, Repealed 7-13-16.
64B8-44.009 Unauthorized Treatments.

Rulemaking Authority 468.507 FS. Law Implemented 468.503(3), (4), (8) FS. History–New 6-22-94, Formerly 61F6-50.009, Amended 2-20-96, Formerly 59R-44.009, Repealed 7-13-16.
64B8-44.010 Mediation.

The Board finds that mediation is an acceptable resolution of the following first time violations that are economic in nature or can be remedied by the licensee:
(1) Failure to comply with the educational course requirements for human immunodeficiency virus and acquired immune deficiency syndrome.

(2) Permitting a license to become delinquent for fewer than thirty (30) days, provided the licensee has not practiced, attempted to practice or offered to practice the profession during the delinquency period.

(3) Failure to promptly return a license or certificate to the Department.

(4) Failure to keep license conspicuously displayed in licensee’s office, place of business or place of employment.

(5) Failure to timely pay fines or costs imposed in a final order.

(6) Advertising violations.

(7) Overcharging for patient records.

(8) Tendering a dishonored check or electronic payment to the Department for payment of licensure or renewal.

(9) Failure to notify the Department of a change of address within sixty (60) days.

Rulemaking Authority 456.078, 468.507 FS. Law Implemented 456.078 FS. History–New 12-28-94, Formerly 59R-44.010, Amended 8-20-14.
